
Page 1 of 3 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 12, 2018 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

18C‐0086. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

18C‐0087. Roll Call 

18C‐0088. Establishment of Quorum 
18C‐0089. Pledge of Allegiance 
18C‐0090. Reports of Standing Committees 
18C‐0091. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA18‐05 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0092. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of February 26, 
2018  

 4‐9 

 
18C‐0093. 

 
Approval of the Renewal of Janitorial Services Contracts with Mary Halstead and 
Jeremy White for May 1, 2018‐April 30, 2019 

10 

 
18C‐0094. 

 
Acceptance of January 2018 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

 
18C‐0095. 

 
Approval of Change Order #2 for Exterior Brick Masonry Repairs at Turner Hall 

11‐14 

 

Page 1 of 50



Page 2 of 3 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
17C‐0472. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Initiating a Sister City Relationship with Agen, 
France 

 
14‐16 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0096. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by Ehrler Ranch to Modify the 
Restriction on the Number of Passengers in a Horse Drawn Carriage that may be 
Pulled by a Single Horse  

 
17‐18 

 
18C‐0097. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance to Rezone 1002 Park Avenue from Low Density 
Residential to Neighborhood Commercial   

 
19 

 
18C‐0098. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Annexing 20.84 Acres of Territory in Rawlins 
Township 

 
20‐24 

 
18C‐0099. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance to Rezone 20.84 Acres in the Cobblestone 
Crossing Subdivision from Limited Agricultural to Medium Density Residential 

 
25 

 
18C‐0100. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Developing an Urban Deer Hunting Program  

 
26‐35 

 
18C‐0101. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Repairs to Crosswalks, 
Sidewalks, and Curb and Gutter 

 
36 

 
18C‐0102. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Adding Watermain Installation to Gear Street 
Project 

 
37‐38 

 
18C‐0103. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Lease with the Illinois Department of 
Transportation for Kayak Storage 

 
39‐44 

 
18C‐0104. 

 
Annual Report of Vacation Rental Licensing Activity 

 
‐‐ 

 
18C‐0105. 

 
Warrants 

45‐50 

 
18C‐0106. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
18C‐0107. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
18C‐0108. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

Page 2 of 50



Page 3 of 3 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. March 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Grant Park Committee  Fri. March 16  10:30 A.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council Budget Work Session #1  Mon. March 19  5:00 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. March 26  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. April 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

 
Posted: Thursday, March 8, 2018 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By: 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0109. 
 
Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (6) – Sale or lease of public property.  

 Section 2 (c) (21) – Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

 
18C‐0110. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 26 FEBRUARY 2018 
 

18C-0066 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 26 February 2018.  
 
18C-0067 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier and Renner 
 
18C-0068 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
18C-0069– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
18C-0070 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – Next meeting Thursday, March 1st at 8:30 a.m. at Turner Hall.   
 
18C-0071 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Dan McCarthy, Marketing Director, Jo Daviess County Historical Society – McCarthy asked 
for support for the 3rd annual Heroes for History 5K event to be held Saturday, August 8, 2018.  
They propose to use the same route as granted last year.  In 2016 they had 100 runners, 2017 
they had 200 runners and it is their hopes to have over 300 runners this year.  A portion of the 
proceeds will be given to the four Galena based first responder units.   
 
Janet Eggleston, 510 Spring Street – Eggleston urged the Council to support the application for 
a sister city relationship with Agen, France.  The request is asking the City to join Sister Cities 
International.  The fee for that would be $185.  They are also asking for a letter of invitation from 
Mayor Renner to the Mayor of Agen.  As she builds the sister city volunteer committee, Eggleston 
would like to have a city liaison that would communicate between the city and the committee.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA18-04 
 
18C-0072 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
FEBRUARY 12, 2018 
 
18C-0073 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA18-13 FOR FURNACE 
REPLACEMENT AT WASTEWATER PLANT, FUND DEFICIT REMEDIATION, AND GRANT 
PARK RESTORATION PROJECT 
 
18C-0074 – APPROVAL OF THE THIRD ANNUAL HEROES FOR HISTORY STAIR 
CHALLENGE, SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2018, 6:00 A.M. TO NOON 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Consent Agenda, CA18-04.           
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            

Page 4 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

17C-0472 – PRESENTATION OF PROPOSAL TO DEVELOP A SISTER CITY RELATIONSHIP 
WITH AGEN, FRANCE 
 
Council questioned how much city time would be needed.  Eggleston felt it was hard to say at this 
time.  It will depend on how often they meet.  The most important thing is for them to have a 
communications link with the city.  While they would like to see that person at all of the meetings, 
they understand that might not be possible.   
 
Lincoln felt it may take a little bit more time in the beginning until it is up and running but should 
require less after that.  He was in support.   
 
Renner questioned why they were asking the city to complete the application.  Eggleston advised 
since it is the city that would become the member of Sister Cities International, she felt the city 
should complete the application.  They need to have a contact from the city and a contact from 
the committee.  The local committee will carry out the work.     
 
Fach questioned if there is a relationship of tourism with Agen.  Eggleston anticipates there would 
be.  They are approaching various groups to be represented on the committee.  The Historical 
Society and VisitGalena.  Rotary has agreed to allow the committee to work under their 501C3.  
They are very supportive and want to be involved.  The type of things shared back and forth 
varies a lot.  Both cities have tourism, the arts and winemakers.  
 
Bernstein questioned, other than cultural exchange and tourism, what else might be gained.  
Eggleston stated visibility by being part of the organization and by sistering with Agen.  Sharing 
between tourism organizations could involve learning new ways to attract people.  Sharing with 
students gives them the opportunity to learn about people in another part of the world.  The 
committee can brainstorm what works best between the two communities.   
 
Eggleston was open to the idea of holding their meetings at City Hall.    
 
18C-0058 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 111, “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
TO PERMIT THE SALE OF BEER FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION BY A CLASS H 
LIQUOR LICENSEE 
 
Motion:   Lincoln moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the second reading of an 
Ordinance amending Chapter 111, “Alcoholic Beverages” of the Code of Ordinances, 18C-0058.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None  
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
18C-0075 – WATER AND WASTEWATER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 
FROM AMERICAN WATER 
 
Matt Trotter, Manager, American Water, updated the council on the Water and Wastewater 
Operations and Maintenance Report .   

Page 5 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

 
Non-revenue water summary 

 Research with a leak survey with a contractor listening to fire hydrants. 
 Test the well meters.   
 Residential meters are accurate and in good condition.     

 
Maintenance.   

 They have done 500 service orders with 100 of those since January. 
 Julie locates account for half of the service orders.   
 They continue to do preventative and corrective maintenance. 
 Andrew and Deb have been working on meter change outs.   

 
Lincoln  questioned if the unaccounted water is an alarming amount.  Trotter stated it is higher 
than he would like it to be.  He is unsure if that is an accurate number as they have had meter 
issues and lots of breaks.  A large percentage of that could be from breaks he wasn’t aware of.   
 
Renner questioned if it was feasible for them to locate for leaks.  Trotter advised it would involve 
going around and using a listening mic on the fire hydrants.  They would note the general feel of 
how loud it was and then go in with a correlator and correlate the hot spots.  It would be a time 
consuming process.   
 
18C-0076 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ZONING CAL. NO. 18A-01, A 
REQUEST BY ANN WILLIAMS AND MATTHEW WARE TO REZONE 1002 PARK AVENUE 
FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL AND TO ALLOW 
INDOOR SALES AND SERVICE AND ACCOMODATIONS, VACATION RENTAL LAND USES 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Zoning Cal. No. 18A-01, a request by 
Ann Williams and Matthew Ware to rezone 1002 Park Avenue from Low Density Residential to 
Neighborhood Commercial and to allow indoor sales and service and accommodations, vacation 
rental land uses, 18C-0076.   
 
Discussion:   Bernstein questioned if this would be a part of the 20 vacation rentals allowed in 
residential neighborhoods.  Oldenburg advised since this would be neighborhood commercial, 
they are allowed by right under neighborhood commercial to have a vacation rental.   
 
There are certain limitations to neighborhood commercial.  It can be office space, personal or 
professional services or indoor sales and service.  It is the smallest scale of commercial type 
uses.   
 
Bernstein questioned if the property were sold at some point, would the new buyers have to go 
through the same process if they wished to use it for anything other than a residence.  They 
would be required meet all criteria except for the special use.   
 
Lincoln voiced concern with the alley.  The Zoning Board considered that briefly.  They were 
concerned with how close to the highway the last parking stall was.  The applicant reduced the 
parking spaces down to four to allow for more screening and landscaping.  They meet the 
required 25’ deep for parking stalls for ease of maneuvering.   
 
The applicant has withdrawn the request to take down the garage.  They will be using that as a 
parking space.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  Fach 
            
  The motion carried. 
 

Page 6 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

18C-0077 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ZONING CAL. NO. 18SUB-01, A 
REQUEST BY DSW INVESTMENTS, LLC TO VACATE AND REPLAT PART OF THE 
COBBLESTONE CROSSING SUBDIVISION CONCURRENT WITH AN ANNEXATION 
PETITION 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Zoning Cal. No. 18SUB-01, A request by 
DSW Investments, LLC to vacate and re-plat part of the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision 
concurrent with an annexation petition, 18C-0077.   
 
Discussion:  This cleans up the area and makes it one parcel.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
18C-0078 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ZONING CAL. NO 18A-02, A 
REQUEST BY DSW INVESTMENTS, LLC TO REZONE FROM LIMITED AGRICULTURAL TO 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Zoning Cal. No. 18A-02, A request by 
DSW Investments, LLC to rezone from Limited Agricultural to Medium Density Residential, 18C-
0078.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
   
  The motion carried.  
 
18C-0079 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CONTRACT WITH WHKS 
ENGINEERING FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE GEAR STREET PROJECT 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve a contract with WHKS Engineering 
for construction services for the Gear Street Project, 18C-0079.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
   
  The motion carried.  
 
18C-0080 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the Warrants as presented, 18C-
0080.   
  
Discussion:  Bernstein questioned the warrant to Dallas Children’s Advocacy in the amount of 
$530.  She was advised that is registration fees for investigator Tony Yett to attend training.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  

Page 7 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

 
18C-0081 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Vacation Rentals – Lincoln stated he would like to sit down with Matt Oldenburg and go over 
vacation rentals in town.  He would like to see a presentation on how it is going, who has them 
and what number we are at.   
 
Vacation Rentals – Bernstein agreed with comments made by Lincoln.  She has heard some 
concerns raised that there is a lack of housing in Galena.  She agrees it would be nice to have 
some input and find out how the program is going.   
 
Sandwich Boards – Kieffer noted there is getting to be a large number of sandwich boards on 
Main Street.   
 
Vacation Rentals – Fach agreed with the comments made by Lincoln.  He recommended having 
a public list of everyone doing Air B & B so everyone knows who is in the game.   
 
Potholes – Fach was happy to see the IDOT crew right out there fixing potholes on the highway.  
He also commended the city crew for doing a good job as well.   
 
18C-0082 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Vacation Rentals – Moran agreed a report on the Vacation Rental Program is a great idea.  Matt 
has been consumed by it with all of the work it has created.  Cindy has great records from the 
finance side as well.   
 
Pool – Janelle Keeffer is in the midst of pool hiring.  She is trying to fill the position of pool and 
concessions manager.  
 
Gear Street – A pre-construction meeting for Gear Street was held at city hall today.  Things are 
moving forward and construction could start as early as April.   
 
Budget – The first draft of the budget will be passed out at the next meeting.  The first budget 
work session will be held March 19th.   
 
18C-0083 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Thank you – Mayor Renner thanked the city crew and other departments for their work on the 
flood.   
 
Congrats – Mayor Renner congratulated Lieutenant Salzmann and Officer Halstead for their 
recognition by the 100 year club for their help in saving an individual on Franklin Street.   
 
18C-0084 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:   Lincoln moved, seconded by Bernstein, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
 

 Sale or lease of public property, Section 2 (c) (6) 
 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 

 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
          
  The motion carried.  

Page 8 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 February 2018 
 

 
The meeting recessed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:29 p.m. 
 
18C-0085 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 9 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    March 5, 2018 

RE:    Janitorial Services Contract Renewals  
 
 
Our contracts for janitorial services at several of our buildings and public restrooms are set to 
expire on April 30.  I am writing to request council approval to renew each contract with the 
current independent contractors.  This would be the fifth year for each contract.  A summary of 
the contracts is presented in Table 1.    

 
 Table 1.  Janitorial Contract Amounts 

 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I would characterize the service from both Mary Halstead and Jeremy White as very thorough, 
dependable, and responsive.  Both have offered to continue with the same scope of services for 
the same fees.   
 
I recommend renewing the contracts with Mary Halstead and Jeremy White, DBA White 
Construction, Inc., through April 30, 2019.    

 

Facility  Contractor  Monthly Cost 

City Hall  Mary Halstead  $580 

City Hall Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead  $540 

Rec Park North Public Restroom  Mary Halstead  $510 

Rec Park South Public Restroom   Mary Halstead  $510 

Grant Park Public Restroom  Mary Halstead  $510 

Market House Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead  $517 

Turner Hall Building  Jeremy White  $350 

Public Works Building  Jeremy White  $110 

 

Page 10 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager and Andy Lewis, City Engineer 

DATE:    March 6, 2018   

RE:  Turner Hall Change Order 2 | Paint Removal from Fly Loft Clay Tiles 
 

Early this summer, we will begin a project to clean, repair, and seal the red clay tiles on 
the top portion of Turner Hall’s fly loft. This project is being fully funded by The Galena 
Foundation / Joe Miller Trust Fund.  
 
Our contractor, Earl Thompson, has expressed concern that existing paint on some of the 
tiles will not be removed by pressure washing alone. Change Order 2 includes an estimate 
for Earl Thompson Masonry to use a paste paint remover in addition to pressure washing 
to clean the tiles and prepare them for sealant.  
 
The additional $9,359.00 for paint removal has been budgeted for and will be paid from 
Joe Miller Trust Funds.  
 
We respectfully ask for City Council approval for this change order to continue work on 
the fly loft sealing project.  
 
Thank you. 
 

 

Page 11 of 50



CHANGE ORDER

NUMBER: 2

PROJECT: Exterior Brick Masonry Repair ‐ Turner Hall

OWNER: City of Galena

ADDRESS: 101 Green Street, Galena IL 61036

CONTRACTOR: Earl Thompson Masonry

ADDRESS: 407 Park Avenue, Galena IL 61036

ENGINEER/ARCHITECT: City of Galena

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE ORDER

You are directed to make the following changes to the contract documents:

Ref. # Work Item Justification Quantity Unit Cost Amount $

1

Remove paint from north and 

south terra cotta walls of fly loft 

using paste style paint remover 

and high‐volume pressure washer.

Portions of terra cotta are coated 

in paint, rendering the sealant 

useless. Originally contract 

accounted for pressure washing 

only, not paste paint remover.  980 $10.75 $10,535.00

2

CREDIT Deduct from jet wash line 

item on original contract 980 sq. 

ft. @ $1.20 sq. ft.

Jet washing was already 

accounted for on the original 

contract. 980 $1.20 ($1,176.00)

TOTAL 9,359.00

Page 12 of 50



ATTACHMENTS AND/OR REFERENCE MATERIAL: (List items and dates below)

See proposal from Earl Thompson dated February 26, 2018

This project‐‐including this change order‐‐is funded by The Galena Foundation / Joe Miller Trust Fund

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:

Original contract price 12,025.00$    

Net change previous change orders ‐$                

Revised contract price with previous change orders 29,269.80$    

Net change of this change order 9,359.00$       

Contract price with all approved change orders 38,628.80$    

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME

Original contract substantial completion date 25‐May‐18

Contract completion date adjustment previous change order NA

Contract completion date adjustment this change order

Adjusted contract substantial completion date including change orders 1‐Jul‐18

Recommended by:

ENGINEER Date

Approved by:

OWNER Date

Approved by:

CONTRACTOR Date

Page 13 of 50



Page 14 of 50



��������	�
��������������

������������������� �!���"#$$�� ��%��&�'�$�(�)*�+,,,�� ���#-�+,+./!0.12/,� ����.�&����*&�&��.$�'�

3�3�3�3�3�3�3�3�3� 444444444444�
4444444444444�

4444444444444�

���5���65��7�89:;<=;�>?;>@�AB;CD�EFD�5��E�G��5������ 65���HIJKL�MNOOO� PQRM� ��D���5��E�S�T�
������MNOOOUQONOOO� PVOO�QONOOOUWMNOOO� PXVO�WMNOOOUMONOOO� PMYM�� ��6����E�5
���E��5

����E���Z��������
���E[�MONOOOUQOONOOO� P\YO� ���D�E�D�������S�T�
������QOONOOOUVOONOOO� PQNOOO� �]L̂�VOONOOOUMOONOOO�MOONOOOUQNOOONOOO� PQNRMM�QNOOONOOO�_IJ�_̀abK� PWNWQM�
c���d��T�
������efg�hfijkjlm�gkno�pkfoqkr�snlmqsm�flgnkoqmfnlt�]L̂�u_vwx_xyaI� zyL{x�|_}K� ~_{x�|_}K� �yxvK��L�_Iy�_xyaI� �JJLK{{� �yx��ux_xK� �y���aJK�6��E�5����������Z���[� ��aIK�Iw}̀ KL��K{� �|a� �}_yv�_JJLK{{�G�E������������ ��K����}_�K��_�_̀vK�xa�uy{xKL��yxyK{��IxKLI_xyaI_v�� ��y{_� �]_{xKL�_LJ� ��}KLy�_I����LK{{����_LJ�|â� ���yL_xyaI��_xK� ���uK�wLyx���aJK� �_LJ�avJKL�|_}K��_LJ�avJKL�uy�I_xwLK�

G
��
E�D�������S�T�
������]L̂�]{̂�u_vwx_xyaI� zyL{x�|_}K� ~_{x�|_}K� �yxvK��L�_Iy�_xyaI �JJLK{{ �yx�ux_xK �y���aJK ��aIK�Iw}̀ KL �}_yv�_JJLK{{�K{�
��E�5�����E������E��[� � |a�g�lnm��p�jq�j�jlmjk�rn�k�sfmr���snlmqsm�flgnkoqmfnl�fl�m�j��n��q�n j¡�

G�����������E�5
�������������������������T�¢����
����£�
d��
�������¤�uy{xKL��yxyK{��IxKLI_xyaI_vN�YQM�QMx��uxLKKx�|¥N�Xx��zvaaLN�¥_{�yI�xaIN���N�WOOOM�¦§̈©ª¦«¬̈© ®̈̄ °̈ ±«²¬³̄̈§«�®§́°��K{� |a�®̄³¬̄¨̄̈§« µ§¶·̈�̧ ¹̄° º̄·̈�̧ ¹̄°»§̈³° ±¼«°�̧¬¹½°¶ ¾¹̄ §³�¿ÀÀ¶°··Á�ÂÃÄÅÆ ÇÈÉÊ�ËÌ�ÍÎÏÐÑÎ ÒÓ ÔÔÕÕ
ÖÎ×Ø ÖË×ÎÑÇÈÉÊ�ÙÚÛÈÑÈÜÉ×ÎÉË× ÝÞßàáááàÞÕßÕ ÛÛË×ÎÑâãÈÉÊËÌäÎÏÐÑÎåË×äæçÜÎÑ èÎ×ä éËÏçÑÉÐÐ×ÙäÐÑ�Î�ÍÎÏÐÑÎ�êëãìÎÑäÐ áÔßí�î�èÏÎãØïÎãØ�ðÚ ÍÎÏÐÑÎÒÓ ñÞÕÔñ ÝíáàÝñáàÝòòß ÜçÜÎÑóÎ×äÞâäÛÎÈÏåãËÛ

ÖË×ÎÑÇÈÉÊ�ËÌ�ÍÎÏÐÑÎ ÞÕÞ�Í×ÐÐÑ�æÉ×ÐÐÉ�����������������������������������������������������ÍÎÏÐÑÎ�ÒÓ ÛÛË×ÎÑâãÈÉÊËÌäÎÏÐÑÎåË×äÖÎ×Ø ÇÈÉÊ�ÙÚÛÈÑÈÜÉ×ÎÉË×

ÖÜåÖÜå
ñÞÕÔñ ÝÞßàáááàÞÕßÕ

Page 15 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
  
 

March 12, 2018 
 
The Honorable Mayor Jean Dionis 
Agen, France 
 
Honorable Mayor Dionis, 
 
It is with great pleasure that I invite the City of Agen to enter into a sister city affiliation with the 
City of Galena, Illinois in the United States of America.  This invitation is on behalf of the many 
citizens of our community and our city council who has voted unanimously in favor of the 
affiliation.  
 
As we look to the future of this alliance, we envision growing awareness and appreciation of 
each other’s culture and people.  From small beginnings, we hope this partnership will continue 
into the future, fostering educational, economic and professional exchanges.  We look forward 
to the limitless possibilities of this relationship. 
 
Although this partnership must begin on an official basis between the governments of our two 
communities, we see the strength and vitality of this long‐term association resting wholly in the 
hands of our citizen volunteers and participants.  To this end, we have designated a group to 
enlist voluntary support in our community and to guide the partnership process.  We suggest 
that a similar body of individuals be assembled in your city. 
 
We truly hope that the City of Agen will seriously consider the opportunity to partner with the 
City of Galena.  We eagerly await your decision.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Terry Renner 
Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 16 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council   

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    March 6, 2018 

RE:    Horse and Wagon Request 
 
Pam Ehrler of Ehrler Ranch LLC submitted the attached request to modify the Horse Drawn 
Carriage Business Ordinance regarding how many passengers may be pulled in a carriage by a 
single horse.   
 
Chapter 119.05 (D) of our code provides the following restrictions: 
 
  (k)   Restriction on number of passengers.  No single animal shall pull a carriage holding more 
than seven people including the driver.  Two horses shall not be permitted to pull more than the 
seating capacity of the carriage. 
 
As explained in her letter, Ehrler proposes to use a single 2,600‐pound horse to pull a rubber‐
tire wagon with up to 12 passengers, plus the driver.  A picture of the wagon is attached.  The 
wagon qualifies as a “carriage” according to the definition in the ordinance.  
 
If you are inclined to accept the proposal, an ordinance would need to be drafted to amend the 
code accordingly.  The ordinance could be presented as early as March 26.   
 

 

Page 17 of 50



Page 18 of 50



 Ordinance #O-18-___   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

______________________________________________________________________   
 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:  The official Zoning Map of the City of Galena shall hereby be amended to change 
the zoning on approximately 0.17 acres at Parcel: 06-500-145-00, Lot 12, excepting 50 square feet 
in Block 23, Original Town East of the Galena River, Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  
Common Address: 1002 Park Avenue, Galena, IL 61036, from Low Density Residential District 
to Neighborhood Commercial District. 
 
SECTION II: All other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage 
and legal publication. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this __th day of ________________, A.D. 2018, in open Council. 
 
 
AYES:       NAYS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________                                   ____________________________   
Terry Renner, Mayor     Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 19 of 50



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________  
 

ORDINANCE ANNEXING 20.84 ACRES OF TERRITORY IN RAWLINS TOWNSHIP 
________________________________________________________________________  

 
  WHEREAS, a written Petition (marked as Exhibit A and made a part of this 
Ordinance), signed by Donald Wienen, the Owner of territory hereinafter described, was 
filed on February 16, 2018 with the City Clerk of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, 
Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Galena; and 
 
  WHEREAS, said territory, located in Rawlins Township, consists of two parcels 
(4.458 acres and 16.382 acres) totaling 20.84 acres, and is legally described in Exhibit B; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the are no (0) electors residing within the said territory; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality, but is contiguous to the City of Galena; and 
 
  WHEREAS, in accordance with the Illinois Compiled Statutes (65 ILCS 5/7), legal 
notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said territory have been sent to all 
public bodies required to receive such notice; and 
 
  WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
placed as record in the office of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Galena that said territory be 
annexed hereto. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
  SECTION I:  That the territory described in Exhibit B is hereby annexed to the City 
of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, and that the boundary lines of Galena be and are 

Page 20 of 50



hereby enlarged and extended to include, within the corporate boundaries thereof, the 
territory above described and as shown in the Plat of Annexation, marked as Exhibit C 
and made a part of this Ordinance.   
   

SECTION II:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder 
and to file with the County Clerk, a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with an 
accurate map of the territory annexed. 
 
  SECTION III:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
  SECTION IV:  Passed and approved this _____ day of ___________, A.D., 2018. 
 
 
    AYES:          NAYS:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   
Mayor, Terry Renner       
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________   
City Clerk, Mary Beth Hyde 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Joe Nack, City Attorney  
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
Return to: 
Mark Moran 
City Administrator 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL  61036 

Page 21 of 50



EXHIBIT A:  PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 
Page 22 of 50



EXHIBIT B: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 

 

Description of lands to be annexed to the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois 

Parcel 1 

Outlot 1 of Cobblestone Crossing at Galena in the Northwest Quarter of Section 12, Township 
28 North Range 1 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian as filed for record on October 21, 2004 
as document 315483, excepting therefrom the following: 

Beginning at the northeast corner of said Outlot 1 of Cobblestone Crossing at Galena; thence 
South 00 degrees 12 minutes 34 seconds East 369.06 feet along the east line of said Outlot 1; 
thence North 85 degrees 31 minutes 10 seconds West 237.20 feet; thence South 76 degrees 36 
minutes 34 seconds West 313.71 feet to the west line of said Outlot 1; thence North 32 degrees 
29 minutes 48 seconds West 224.77 feet along said westerly line of Outlot 1; thence North 53 
degrees 51 minutes 28 seconds West 122.86 feet along said westerly line of Outlot 1; thence 
North 72 degrees 19 minutes 29 seconds West 710.85 feet along said westerly line of Outlot 1; 
thence North 6 degrees 56 minutes 08 seconds West 13.31 feet to the north line of said Outlot 
1; thence South 87 degrees 17 minutes 56 seconds East 1440.79 feet to the Point of Beginning, 
containing 7.965 acres, more or less, all situated in Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

Parcel 2 

A parcel of land located in the west half of Section 12, Township 28 North, Range 1 West of the 
Fourth Principal Meridian, Jo Daviess County, Illinois more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Outlot 1 of Cobblestone Crossing at Galena; 
thence South 00 degrees 12 minutes 34 seconds East 669.99 feet along the east line of said 
Outlot 1 to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing South 00 degrees 12 minutes 34 seconds 
East 993.99 feet; thence North 88 degrees 18 minutes 59 seconds West 764.50 feet; thence 
North 2 degrees 12 minutes 33 seconds East 808.87 feet; thence North 79 degrees 38 minutes 
34 seconds West 313.45 feet to the south boundary of said Cobblestone Crossing; thence North 
87 degrees 32 minutes 40 seconds East 239.06 feet along said boundary; thence North 86 
degrees 01 minute 11 seconds East 217.21 feet along said boundary; thence North 84 degrees 
39 minutes 55 seconds East 194.59 feet along said boundary; thence North 51 degrees 58 
minutes 16 seconds East 110.57 feet along said boundary; thence South 89 degrees 07 
minutes 16 seconds East 301.57 feet along said boundary to the Point of Beginning, containing 
16.388 acres, more or less, all situated in Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

 

Page 23 of 50



Page 24 of 50



 Ordinance #O-18-___   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

______________________________________________________________________   
 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:  The official Zoning Map of the City of Galena shall hereby be amended to change 
the zoning on approximately 20.84 acres, Outlot 1 of Cobblestone Crossing and a parcel of land, 
Parcel 2 of Cobblestone Crossing Plat 2, located in the West half of Section 12, Township 28 North, 
Range 1 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian, Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois from Limited 
Agriculture District to Medium Density Residential District. 
 
SECTION II: All other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage 
and legal publication. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this __th day of ________________, A.D. 2018, in open Council. 
 
 
AYES:       NAYS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________                                   ____________________________   
Terry Renner, Mayor     Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 25 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council   

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    March 6, 2018 

RE:    Deer Population Management  
 
 
At the February 12 meeting, Deer Committee Chairperson, John Cox, reviewed the results of 
the January 16 aerial deer count and presented recommendations for the deer management 
program.  He highlighted that action needs to be taken to control the deer population in the 
city limits.  He and the committee recommended reducing the herd size with a bow and arrow 
hunting program.  I am writing to provide information about a model urban deer hunting 
program in another community and to request direction from the council.   
 
I recently spoke with the urban deer project manager for the Illinois Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR), Tim Preuss, about the deer situation in Galena.  Preuss confirmed that the 
City may initiate and manage an urban bow hunting program to reduce the deer population.  
Unlike an urban deer hunting program using firearms, an initiative using bow and arrow does 
not require a DNR permit or DNR oversight.  The hunting program would have to fit within the 
framework of our local ordinances and participating hunters would have to follow local and 
Illinois hunting laws.  
 
Numerous area cities, including Dubuque, Davenport, Moline, Bettendorf, and Rock Island, 
conduct urban deer hunting programs.  I am including the guidelines, ordinance, and hunting 
application for the Rock Island program as an example of how a program could be structured in 
Galena.  I have spoken with the program manager in Rock Island and believe a similar program 
could be administered by City staff with cooperation from local bow hunters.   
 
A hunting program would have to be conducted during the Illinois bow season, in 2018 from 
October 1 through January 14.  If you are inclined to consider initiating such a program, staff 
would prepare an ordinance and program guidelines for your consideration at a future meeting.     

 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  
 

Page 26 of 50



Page 27 of 50



Page 28 of 50



Page 29 of 50



Page 30 of 50



Page 31 of 50



�������� �	
����������	��������������	�����������������	 ��!���"� �#�$�#��� ��#���%&�'

����'����	�����
�$�(�	���
���)*�+�
!,��)����$���$	����� ��-

./01�23451�678/98:;<�=>?@A;7B/;<�.@7CD;EAF<�678/GA8H;<�IAG�JCK�J88AG<�J78�LMCNO�PQRSTUVUWXYZ�[���	����������\������]�������(���	�
��]\�(��	����$��
����	���]�
�����\��&�\��������������	�(��	���\�����	���((\�(��	����	����$	���]�����	$�\�(��	
��
!	�\�(��	̂���\���
!	��������	��(��	 ��!� �����	�	�����_� 	�	�\���	�$��
����	��(�(��	�����̂]���	��	�̂ 	����(���]��������]�������̀����� �	���������$	���$�����

��$��
	� ������	�
�����$��(���	�
�����$�����((�
	�\����̂]���]�
��]�((�
	��������	���	����������	�$��
����	��(���]��	����$&�]�����	
	����]���$��� (&���
��$��	���������	����$�
��	(&������	�\�����������̂	�$		�	$��������������	�	�(����[���	����������������]�������(��	�
��]�����	�����]�����	$�\�(��	
��
!	�\�(��	̂���\���
!	��������	��(��	 ��!�� �����	�	������	 ��!����$	(��	$������	�(��	 ��!���	�&��������
�\�-�a�)��������b�����	$�����&�	�������ÔPcUR�defg�cfY�hSi�defgZ�)��������̂	�&��� (&��(�����]��	��������$��
����	������	����		��\���	�&	�\���	]��������	���&̂��
����&�$����]������&�������]��&��(���� ��
������	������	�$�����	����������	�O
PjkUflgTSWgm�nSo�cfY�cRRSom�pqrXsWUSfZ�)��������̂	�&��� (&��(�����]��	�����������������������������̂ ���$����� � ��������	�
�������	���������(���	�
��]��_� 	�	�\���
�	�]���]�̂	����
��
	$��(�$��	�������(	����
	���$�&�$	����	�
���	�	����&�	���������(�����$&����t�	������̂�������������������������̂� ��$����� � ��������	�
��]����������������������]������	��&�������(�$		�� ������̂� ���$����� ����

��$��
	� �����&̂�	
�����O$P��(�������	
�����O$PcRrTXRi�uXXR�vefWUflZ�#��	�������]�$��
����	�������\��	
&��	\�
����&�$�̂� \����
����̂� ����	�����	$�̂]���	�)��������$	�����	����(����&�����	��&�
	���	�&����������$���	��� ���(���	�����	��()�������\� ��������	�
�������	���������(���	�
��]�$&�������	�
�&��	��(�����	������$		���(���	�(���� ����	w&��	�	������	��	�'O�P�t�	��	������&�������	���������$�$		����
�	�]��	��������&	$�̂]���	�����	��(�)����������$��&��
����]� ���������(���	�
��$��������(���	��	�������$����������
�̂�	��� ����$��	�&���������(���	�)�������$	�����	����(����&�����	��&�
	���	������������
�	�]�$		���&������O�P�t�	��	������&�������	�����$		���&�������	��������&	$�̂]���	�
��]��t�	�
����(���������	����������	̂�(�(�]�$�������Oxa����P��t�	������
���������
	$&�	��	
	����]�(����̂�����������	�����������̂	�

��$���������	�
��]��(�+�
!�)����$�$		�������	�	����&�	����$��	����
������(���$		���&���������&̂�	
�����O(P��(�������	
�����O�P�t�	��&�̂ 	���(���
����������y���	�y�(���$		���&���������̂	��	�����	$�������̂	��	��̂]���	�
��]
�&�
������������&���̂������t�	�	�������̂	�(�&��		��O�-P��	�����	$�y���	�y� ����������	������	����O�P�y���	�y���
��	$����������	�����	��]��t�	���̀	��(�	�
��y���	y� �	��	������&̂��
����������	�����	��]\�&������	��������&���(����		�O�P�
�����&�&���
�	���b��]����((��������$	���(]���$�������	�����y���	�y�O-P���
���&��	��������̂	��&�����̀	$�����&���(�������������	$�y����$y���
��	$������	��	�����	$�&������y���	�y����
��y����$y���
��	$�������������	$�y���	y����������	��������&������(�����	������(����(		��O�zP��[���	�����������!�� ����]�$��	
��������� ��
�������	�̂�&�$��]��(�����((���	�$	������	$y���	y��{��]���	��&��	���	��y����$y������]���	����	� ����̂	����� 	$��)(��&�����	�y����$�y���	����̂	��
��	$������y���	y\�	�
��y����$y����������	���$	����]��(�����	��������(��	�OaP��
�	��OaP�*�
����������������	��&������y���	�y� ����̂	���	��	������̂����]��(���	��&��	���t�	��&��	������������$	�y���	y���(��������������	�
��	(��(�����
	� ��� ����(�� ��$���������	�
���&���]���$�	
�����
$	�	����	���$	�����	��� ��� ����$	�	����	��(���	�y���	y���(���������
�����	�� ����������	
�������$��	��&�	����$����
	$&�	��(���$		���&����������&̂�	
�����O(P��(�������	
������t�	�y���	y���(���������&̂����	$�̂]���	��&��	����������
�&$	���$	�
����������$��$$�	����(���	�������	$��&������y���	y�O�P�_&������ �������]�̂	����� 	$��������	���	
�(�
�$�]��$	������	$����$		��̂� ��	�����̂]���	)��������$	�����	����(����&�����	��&�
	����$���	�
��]��(�+�
!�)����$\�)��������

Page 32 of 50



�������� �	
����������	��������������	�����������������	 ��!���"� �#�$�#��� ��#���%&�'

����'����	�����
�$�(�	���
���)*�+�
!,��)����$���$	����� ��-

./0�1�	��������&�2	���(�$		�����2	�����	��	$���� 	��������	��&�2	���(����	���$�(	���	�$		����� 	$����2	�����	��	$��	���&��	��������2	��	��23��&�	�����&2�	
�����.(0��(�������	
�����.�0�1�	�����	��(����	�������(�������	��	$�$		��������2	��	��23��&�	�����&2�	
�����.(0.�02��(������	
�����1�����&2�	
�����.$0����������3�2	����(��
	�(�����	�2� ���$����� �$		���&�������	���������������	$23�
��3�
�&�
���.	0456789:;�1�	������&��(��	�(����������������(���	�������������(�������	
�����������2	�(�(�3�$������.<=����0��)����	�	�	������	���������

&�	$��(��������������(�������	
�������$�$�	������ �������
���	�����$����	������������������	����	���
���������������&	$�(�����	����������>���	����	��	���������

&�	$��3���3������	�
��3��������
	��	�$?&���	������	����3������	��&���(�(�(�3�$�������.<=����0�(�����$����(&�������(�
������(���	�����������.(0@55A�B767C5D569�EF85G�H6I�E5G9AJK9JL6G;�1�	�
��3��(�+�
!�)����$��	�����������
�	�3��&�������������(���$		��������	((�������2	��	��
���������	�$		�����&������� ��������	�2�&�$���	���(���	�
��3>
������	��>��� 	�	�>�&�������&���
�&�
����	��	 ��1�	����	������������	�
��������(��&�����������	����	��3�� �	��>�3	��	��2�	���
�	�3��&��	����������	�����	�$		��(�����	���&�	������������$	��	���(����
������	�
�	��M&���������	�� ����2	��	�	
�	$�2��	$����
���	������
�&$����$		��
��
	��������>���(	�3>���$���	��������
���1�	�	���	�����&���������	?&��	$��(��&��	���������	((���������!	���	��������������(	��������2�	>�3	���
��	�	���	�������(������������	��&�2	���(�$		�� ��������	�
��3��������.�0�NF695AG;���OP97J6J6C�H�45ADJ9;�M&��	����&����2��������	����������$	����������
����	������	�+�
!�)����$�$		������	�	������������)����$	������2��������	����>��&��	��� �����		$���������$	���	�(���� ���'���Q����	���	���������(������	�����	��3�� �	���(���	����	���	3�$	���	�����&������M&��	�����	�	�
�&���	$�����2������	���������(�����$R�
	�����$��2&����������	��3�� �	��>��	�	�����	���	�� ����2	�
����$	�	$�������(���	��&���������	����S��(�
�	�
3�
	���(�
������(�������������	$������$	��-��T��3��(�)���������&��������
	��	�=��T����	�	$�+�
!�)����$�$		�������	�	��������
������(����2��NF69J6C�EF85G�H6I�E5CF879JL6G;���M&��	����&����$�	�	������������	��(�)����������$�$	�����	����(����&�����	��&�
	���&�$	���	�>�&�	�>���$��	����
���������M&��	����&����2���������������	�����	��	��������$���������M&��	����&������	�������$�
��3��(�+�
!�)����$��	�����-��M&��	��� ��������	�������	����� ��.�0�$�	��2	(��	�����	��������2&
!�=��#���$		������	��	$����������(���	�$		�������	�	������������&���2	�
�	
!	$���������	�� �.�0��$	���(�	$�(��	����������.	����	�$		�0����#����	�������&���2	��	���	$�(������	��&���������	�

Page 33 of 50



�������� �	
����������	��������������	�����������������	 ��!���"� �#�$�#��� ��#���%&�'

����'����	�����
�$�(�	���
���)*�+�
!,��)����$���$	����� ��-

.��/&��	��� �����0������	���������(��������	��1�� �	���0	(��	����
!��������	���	�������$		����������	����&���(���	�������	$��&��������	���)���������������������������	���	�	�����	�2�3�4567869�:87;<=����	�� ����0	�������	$�01���	�
��1�0��	$�&����
���	������
�&$����$		�
��
	��������>���(	�1>���$���	���������
�����?;<7@8A78B6<�C6D�?;E58@;F;67<=���G��������(�����	�����������		�2�3�
�����&�&���
�	�����H�	��&�$�	$�2���3�1��$��(�������
����>����!>����
�&�
�>�&��	���������	$�������&��	$����������	�������������������	���!	�������$� � ��$�����	�-���������&�������0	���!	������� �1���	1���1�
���1�����������	������

&��	$���	��I��H��1���	��&��	���
���	��	�����	������1����	����G	���������	����1����	������	��	����
����� �	���&������������� 	$�.��#������	�� ����0	�����	$� ����������	��0����	$�(������	�+�
!�)����$�����
	�$	�����	����J���������	� ����0	����
	$����������	��������������0�	�����	���0��������$��0&����������	��1�� �	�� �	���&��	�����	��
���	����/&��	���
������&�	������>��
�	 ��������	�����$ ��	�����((�������$���H��1��������������	������K&���������
��	�����1�0	�&�	$������		��0��L5M78NM;�4567;@<=���#$$���������&��	�����1�0	����� 	$� �	��&��������	�����	�����$������$	����1��(�����	���������	��&��	���	��(��	�2I3��
�	�����O���	��1�� �	�����1�
���$����	� �����&�����	��&��	������&����P	������	>�0&�����1���	��&��	���1��
���	�1�&�	�������$������1���	����	�2�3�Q@BN;@7R�ST6;@<=���O���	��1�� �	����	�	��	���	����������$	�1��&�����������	�������	��1�0��O���	��1�� �	��� �����������&���������� ��&�����������	�������	��1��&����&0������	������	�(����������������	�$		�������	�	����������������	��
��J�	�
��1� ��������(1�����	��1�� �	����������	��$K�
	�����$��0&���������������	$��&���������	����$���
	������	��	��$��O���	��1�� �	��� �����0K	
���������
��
	�����	���$�����&�����������	�����
����1����&�$�����	��	���
��
	������ ����������
����
����	�$		�������	�	����������������	��2-3�Q5UM8A�VW6D<=�/&��	��� �����	�&��0�	������
��	����&���0�	����	� ������+�
!�)����$���	�	����0�	����&�������	�	
�	$��&0��
����$���&
��������(�
�&��	��������	����	
�(�
���1��$	���(�	$���	����J�	��&��	�� ����(���� ������(���	��	X&��	�	�����$	���(�	$�(����&���������������	����$��)���$$�����>���	�(���� ������
	$&�	�� ����0	�&�	$����$	�	����	� ��� �����&����������	����$���*���	��������	�����	���	���&
����
	�	�	��	����1�(���� ��������������
	������/&����������$���	��� ����0	��$	���(�	$�01���	�Y
�������������	�
1Y>���$	�����	��>�0���$>���$	������	$���$���$&���

Page 34 of 50



�������� �	
����������	��������������	�����������������	 ��!���"� �#�$�#��� ��#���%&�'

����'����	�����
�$�(�	���
���)*�+�
!,��)����$���$	����� -�-

.��/&��	�� ����	��	����	������	������������	�0�(�����
���
	��(�.	����� ��$	$��	���������������
	���&����������$����$	������	$���	���
��1��	�� ����.	��	�	
�	$�����&�����$�� ���� ����	�
���(���	����	�����	$������$	��$��/&��	��� �����	�� ��$	$������	�2��&����.�������	���
��0��(�+�
!�)����$��	�����.	(��	���0�&��������!	�����
	�	��)(����&��	��	���&������	����&���0��(�$		���������$���	��	����������������	�2���	0���	��������(0���	
�������������	�
0��3�	�
�������������	�
0������	���	������.�	�(���
����
�������	��	���	����.�	�&��	��(��3�	��&��	�� ��������(0���	�
�������������	�
0�����$���
	� �	����	0���������.	��
���	��3������0.	�$��	�����	������������&������&�&���0����		$�&�������
	���456�789:;<=>>:?�@A8>=8BC���#�0��&������ ��
����!	�����
	� ����&������������	��	������ ����.	�
����$	�	$����
�������$��	��	$�����&
��.��#�0��&�������������	��0� ��
���������������	$�.0���	�
��0� ����.	�
����$	�	$����
�������$��	��	$�����&
��
��/&�������������	��0� ����&����	�����	��0�� �	���	����
����	���������������	������.�	�$��#�0������������(���	�$		�������	�	������������&�	����$��&�$	���	�� �����	�&��������	�	����	����	��
�������(�
��0��&������������	�	����$��&.D	
����	��&��	������������.�	�(��	�(��������������	�	��.�������$����
	��4�����E�$	2�
���F))2������)��G�$�2�������H���G�$�2���������G�$�2����������G�$����5H2������-��G�$�������2����������G�$���-���2��������-��G�$��������2�����������G�$��������-2���H���-��G�$��������52�-�����56

Page 35 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:      Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:      7 March 2018 
 
RE:      Unit Costs for Sidewalk, Crosswalk, Curb and Gutter  

 
    
 
Request for quotes for unit costs for repairs to crosswalk, sidewalk and curb and gutter were sent 
to four contractors who have completed work for the city in recent years. These will be returned 
on 12 March. 
 
This project involves the installation and replacement of various areas of crosswalk, sidewalk and 
curb and gutter at different locations through Galena. Each year a list of deteriorated areas is 
compiled and city staff arrange for a repair to be completed on an ‘as need’ basis.  
 
At Monday night’s council meeting I will have details of the responses and recommend a 
contractor to complete the proposed work. 

Page 36 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:   Andy Lewis, City Engineer    

    Mark Moran, City Administrator   
 
DATE:    March 8, 2018 
 
RE:    Gear Street Reconstruction Project Watermain 
        
The approved contract for the Gear Street reconstruction project includes replacing watermain 
between Bench Street and High Street and all water service lines between Bench Street and 
West Street, but excluding those newer lines between High Street and Dodge Street.  The water 
main scheduled for replacement was included in the construction contract because the existing 
main conflicts with the street project.  Because the street project caused the conflict, IDOT is 
paying for all the contracted watermain and water service work.    
 
With the entire Gear Street surface scheduled to be removed, we believe we would be remiss 
not to at least consider replacing the remainder of the 1970s cast iron watermain between the 
river and West Street.  I believe the history of water main breaks and the cost of the work are 
the two main factors to consider.   
 
Our records for the past five years indicate one main break on the river to Bench Street section 
and one break on the High Street to West Street section.  This would appear to indicate that the 
main is in relatively good condition.  Of course, the past is not necessarily a predictor of the 
future with main breaks.  
 
The cost of replacing the main would be set by the unit prices already included in the contract 
with Fisher Excavating.  Replacing the section of main from the river to Bench Street would be 
$25,956.  The section from High Street to West Street would cost $168,375.  These costs are 
shown in Table 1 below. 

 
Table 1.  Gear Street Water System Improvement Costs 

 

Item  Amount $

Replace watermain and three service lines between Bench Street and 
parking lot below the Gazette 

25,956.03

Replace watermain and twelve service lines between Bench Street and 
West Street 

168,375.07

TOTAL  194,331.10

Page 37 of 50



 

2 of 2 

Any costs for water system improvements would be paid from the Water Fund.  The Water 
Fund is expected to end the current fiscal year on April 30 with a balance of $920,000.  To assist 
with your evaluation of this issue, we projected revenues and expenses over the next 10 years 
to assess the impact of the contemplated Gear Street water main work on the fund balance.   
 
Two expense scenarios were evaluated.  In both scenarios we assumed completion of the 
$194,000 of work on Gear Street next fiscal year and completion of the planned east side water 
system improvements and water tower painting the following fiscal year (FY 20).   
 
In Scenario A, we assumed a 50% forgivable EPA loan and full repayment of the loan principal in 
FY 20.  We have already applied for the loan/grant.  In Scenario B, we assumed the same loan, 
but with the principal of $500,000 being repaid over 10 years.  In other words, Scenario A 
would not involve new debt while Scenario B would.   
 
For both scenarios, the projected year‐end fund balance for the Water Fund is shown in Table 
1.  With Scenario A, the year‐end fund balance would drop to a low of $197,740 in FY 20.  This 
would be about 27% of annual operating expenses for the Water Fund, just shy of the 30% 
prescribed by the Minimum Fund Balance Policy.  With Scenario B, the fund balance would drop 
to a low of $550,300 in FY 23.  This would be about 73% of annual operating expenses. 
 

Table 1.  Water Fund: 10‐Year Balance Projection 
 

Scenario  FY 19  FY 20  FY 21  FY 22  FY 23  FY 24  FY 25  FY 26  FY 27  FY 28 

A  $720,036   $197,740  $209,336   $227,732  $257,968  $456,206  $631,818  $809,384   $976,101  $1,119,092 

                               

B  $720,036   $644,340   $604,769   $571,742  $550,298  $696,598  $820,012  $945,119   $1,059,115  $1,149,121 

 
We have attempted to efficiently manage both the Water Fund and the Sewer Fund to avoid 
new debt and avoid increasing user rates.  The Water Fund has not incurred debt since 2007 
and the user rate has not increased since 2004.  Under Scenario A, a rate increase could be a 
possibility, especially with unforeseen future expenses.  With Scenario B, we would incur new 
debt, but should be able to avoid a rate increase.    
 
Please feel free to contact us with any questions.   
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 38 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council   

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    March 5, 2018 

RE:    Lease for Kayak/Canoe Storage 
 
 
At the February 12 meeting, you approved the concept of creating kayak and canoe storage 
under the US 20 bridge on the east side.  Following the approval, I submitted an application to 
the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) to enter into a lease agreement to use the area 
under the bridge.  IDOT responded with the attached lease.  City Attorney, Joe Nack, reviewed 
the lease and is comfortable with the terms.   
 
With the approval and execution of the lease, we will complete the installation of the storage 
racks and begin renting spaces.  As a reminder, the Galena Community Development Fund is 
paying for the construction and installation of the racks.  Annual storage rental fees are 
expected to be more than adequate to cover the annual lease amount of $120.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  
 

Page 39 of 50



 

 

Lease Agreement  
Non-Highway Use  
(Right of Way) 

 
Route FA Route 5 Project       
Section 102VBR Job No. R-92-006-78 
County Jo Daviess Parcel 278F008 Unit 1A 
 
This agreement is made on May 1, 2018 between the state of Illinois, Department of Transportation, 
LESSOR, and City of Galena whose address is 101 Green Street of the city of Galena and the state of 
Illinois, LESSEE. 
 
The LESSOR currently owns property located under the bridge that carries US 20 across the Galena River, 
in Depot Park and LESSEE desires to lease a portion of said property for the sole purpose of kayak storage 
and not otherwise. 
 
In consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter contained, 
LESSOR and LESSEE mutually agree that: 
 
LESSOR, for and in consideration of the sum of One Hundred and Twenty and 00/100 dollars ($120.00), 
per year, which amount shall be divided into equal yearly payments of $120.00 over the term of the lease, 
with the first payment being on the effective date of the lease agreement and each year thereafter on the 
1st day, and the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth leases to LESSEE for a period of 5 years 
not exceeding five (5) years from the 1st day of May, 2018, to and including the 30th day of April, 2023.  
The LESSOR acknowledges receipt of the sum of Zero and 00/100 dollars ($0.00), from the LESSEE, as 
advanced payment for the first year of said term and as payment for the last year of said term.  The premises 
being more particularly described as follows and shown on Exhibit A attached. 

The above described property, as delineated on said Exhibit A, constitutes the entire property leased and  
is herein referred to as the “Premises.” 
 
LESSEE, further understands, covenants and agrees with the LESSOR as follows: 
 
1. No representations as to the condition, repair or suitability of premises have been made by 

LESSOR, its agents or employees, to LESSEE prior to or at the execution of this lease agreement 
that are not herein expressed or endorsed hereon. 

 
2. LESSEE intends to develop, occupy and use said premises as follows: Erect Kayak Storage, and 

in doing so, will lay concrete pads to attach storage racks, according to a plan of operation 
specifically detailing the intended development, occupation and use of said premises, including the 
installation and location of any improvements to be situated thereon.  The plan of operation or any 
subsequent revised plans of operation shall be prepared by and at the sole cost and expense of 
LESSEE and must be approved by the regional engineer of District Two of the Department of 
Transportation at Dixon, Illinois, who is the authorized representative of LESSOR.  Such approval 
shall be subject to concurrence of the Federal Highway Administration.  Any and all approved 
development and/or improvements shall be made at the sole cost and expense of LESSEE.  
LESSOR will not approve the construction of any permanent structures in, on or over said premises 
except as may hereinafter be provided. 

 
 The premises shall not be occupied or used by LESSEE for other than the purposes of laying/ 

pouring concrete pads and attaching kayak storage units, specified in the approved plan of 
operation, without further written approval of LESSOR. 

 
3. Payment set forth above shall be by certified check, bank draft or U.S. postal money order payable 

to the Treasurer, State of Illinois, at such place as will be designated by the LESSOR. 
 
4. Signs, displays or devices shall be subject to regulation by the LESSOR, shall be restricted in size, 

location and design to those necessary as required for the occupation and use of the leased 
premises and shall not be visible from the travel lanes of the highway facility, unless it or they 
conform to all applicable state and local regulations. 

Page 40 of 50



 
5. LESSEE shall obtain at its own expense any permits, licenses and/or certificates of either a 

temporary or a permanent nature as may be required for the use, occupancy, control of, or the 
conduct of business on the premises and shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, 
rules and regulations bearing on the use, occupation, control of, or conduct of business on said 
premises. 

 
6. The leased premises shall not be used for the manufacture or storage of flammable material, nor 

for the  conduct of any business or occupation causing the emission of fumes, vapors, odors, or 
discharges which may be deemed by the LESSOR to adversely affect the highway facility or the 
use thereof. 

 
7. LESSEE shall keep said premises and appurtenances in a neat, clean and orderly condition at all 

times, and not cause, permit or suffer rubbish, junk cars, tin cans, garbage, chemical compounds, 
petroleum products or any other refuse to accumulate thereon; or permit or allow the sale or 
dispensing of spirituous, brewed or vinous beverages on said premises; or to make or suffer any 
unlawful, improper or offensive use of the premises contrary to any law of the United States of 
America or the State of Illinois or any ordinance of the city of Galena or county of Jo Daviess now 
or hereinafter made, or which shall be injurious and/or offensive to any person or property. 

 
8. LESSEE shall promptly pay when due, all gas, light, water and other utility bills applicable to said 

premises and appurtenances, and LESSEE further agrees to save harmless the LESSOR, its 
officers, agents and employees from any and all liability for the furnishing of gas, light, water and 
other utilities. 

 
9. The LESSEE agrees: 
 

A. That, LESSEE accepts sole responsibility for any property, waste, residue or discharge 
containing or contaminated with petroleum, or any fraction thereof, hazardous substances 
or hazardous wastes which LESSEE has not removed from the premises of the State as of 
the termination of the Lease; and 

 
B. That, LESSEE will indemnify and hold the State of Illinois harmless from and against any 

and all claims, obligations and liabilities and all costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred, 
based upon or arising out of the matters above; and 

 
C. That, the obligation of the LESSEE to indemnify and hold the State of Illinois harmless shall 

survive the Lease and shall be a continuing, unconditional obligation and not subject to any 
limitations as to duration or amount. 

 
10. LESSEE assumes liability for all losses, expenses, costs, actions, cause of action, demands, 

damages and claims in connection with or arising out of any injuries, or claimed or alleged (including, 
but not being limited to, death) to any person, or any damage or claimed or alleged damage, to any 
property of any person (including, but not being limited to, LESSOR) sustained, or claimed, or 
alleged to have been sustained in connection with, or to have arisen out of or to have resulted from, 
whether directly or indirectly, the occupation and use of the premises by LESSEE, or by any one or 
more of its contractors, agents, servants or employees, and even though caused, occasioned or 
contributed to by the negligence, sole or concurrent, of LESSOR, its agents, servants or employees 
including, but not being limited to, losses, costs, expenses or damages sustained by LESSOR itself; 
and LESSEE agrees to indemnify and hold harmless LESSOR, its agents, servants and employees, 
from any and all such losses, expenses, costs, actions, causes of action, demands, damages and 
claims and agrees to defend any suit or action brought against any one or more of them based on 
any such alleged injury or damage, and to pay all damages, costs, losses and expenses incurred, 
including but not limited to, attorney's fees, in connection therewith or resulting therefrom. 

 
11. LESSEE shall not assign this Lease and shall not sublet the whole or any portion of the leased 

premises without the prior written consent of the LESSOR, subject to concurrence of the Federal 
Highway Administration. 

  

Page 41 of 50



 
12. LESSOR reserves to itself and its employees the right to enter, inspect and view the premises at all 

times and when required for the protection and maintenance of highway facilities, and LESSOR 
further reserves the right of immediate entry on leased premises and the right to take possession 
thereof in case of national or other emergency. 

 
13. The LESSEE, at LESSEE'S own cost and expense shall maintain said premises, including all 

driveways, fences, guardrails and drainage facilities heretofore, or hereafter erected, provided that 
the LESSEE may at its expense install and maintain such additional entrances as may be required 
by its use of said premises, subject to permit requirements of, and the approval by the LESSOR and 
concurrence by the Federal Highway Administration.  The LESSEE shall take all steps necessary 
to effectively protect and maintain fences, guardrails, drainage facilities and the piers and columns 
of the viaducts from damage incident to the LESSEE'S use of such premises, all without expense 
to the LESSOR.  The LESSEE shall be liable to and shall reimburse the LESSOR for any damage 
to state owned fences, guardrails, drainage facilities and piers, or columns resulting from or 
attributable to the use and occupancy of said premises by the LESSEE or any person entering upon 
the same with the expressed or implied consent of the LESSEE.  LESSOR, by the terms of this 
agreement, or otherwise, shall not be bound to do or cause to be done any maintenance, repair, 
replacements or improving of said premises or appurtenances thereto. 

 
14. Under no circumstances shall direct ingress or egress be allowed from, to or over the premises 

described herein from or to any freeway highway facility. 
 
15. The LESSEE shall, at its own expense, take out and keep in force during its tenancy (a) public 

liability insurance, in a company or companies to be approved by the LESSOR, to protect against 
any liability to the public incident to the use of, or resulting from injury to, or death of, any person 
occurring in or about the premises, in the amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 to indemnify against 
claim of one person, and in the amount of not less than $1,000,000.00, against the claims of two or 
more persons resulting from any one accident, and (b) property damage or other insurance, in a 
company or companies to be approved by the LESSOR, to protect LESSEE and any and every 
cause occurring in, or about, the premises, including any and all liability of the LESSEE and 
LESSOR for damage to vehicles parked on the premises, and to any damage caused to the highway 
facility by the LESSEE or anyone using the leased area as a permittee or licensee, by fire, or any 
item insurable under extended coverage insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000.00.  
Said policies shall inure to the contingent liabilities, if any, of the LESSEE and LESSOR and shall 
obligate the insurance carriers to notify LESSEE and LESSOR, in writing, not less than fifteen (15) 
days prior to the cancellation thereof, or any other change affecting the coverage of the policies.  If 
said policies contain any exclusion concerning property in the care, custody or control of the insured, 
an endorsement shall be attached thereto stating that such exclusion shall not apply with regard to 
any liability of the LESSOR.  In the event use of these premises should ever be approved for 
subleasing to private persons or firms, sublessee shall be obligated to obtain the aforesaid 
insurance.  LESSEE shall furnish to the LESSOR a certified copy of each and every such policy 
within not more than ten (10) days prior to the effective date of the lease.  LESSEE agrees that, if 
any approved SUBLESSEE does not keep such insurance in full force and effect, the LESSEE shall 
take out insurance and pay the premiums thereon.  In the event the LESSEE or an approved 
SUBLESSEE is unable to obtain the insurance required herein, this lease shall become null and 
void. 

 
16. This Lease may be canceled and terminated by either party thereto giving ninety (90) days advance 

notice in writing to the other and may also be canceled and terminated by LESSOR without notice, 
for any default by LESSEE in any of the covenants and agreements herein contained and upon any 
such termination and cancellation LESSOR may enter and repossess the premises at any time.  
Furthermore, upon such cancellation and termination or upon expiration of this Lease, LESSEE 
agrees to immediately yield possession of said premises to LESSOR and, at its sole cost and 
expense, to rest or said premises to a condition satisfactory to LESSOR and to remove from the 
above described premises, all improvements, and appurtenances thereto, or any other property of 
any name or nature, utilized, owned or controlled by said LESSEE or anyone claiming under it, 
except the surfacing and column guards.  Any such property not removed from premises within thirty 
(30) days after cancellation and/or termination of said Lease, may be removed and disposed of by 
the State of Illinois, its agents, employees, or contractors, in any manner it sees fit, at the sole cost 
and expense of the LESSEE, or the LESSOR, in its absolute discretion, may elect to declare the 

Page 42 of 50



same the property of the LESSOR whereupon all rights, title and interest of the LESSEE therein 
shall terminate immediately. 

 
17. No holding over by LESSEE shall operate to renew this agreement without the written consent of 

the LESSOR endorsed thereon.  Should the LESSEE hold over after the expiration of the term of 
this Lease, with the consent of the LESSOR, expressed or implied, said tenancy shall be deemed 
to be a tenancy only from month to month, subject otherwise to all the terms and conditions of this 
agreement so far as applicable. 

 
18. LESSEE agrees to abide by such other rules and regulations as may be initiated by the Regional 

Engineer for the Department of Transportation. 
 
19. The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of any approved successor of the LESSEE. 
 
20. The LESSEE for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns as a part of 

the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that: 
 
 (1) No person, on the ground of race, color, gender or national origin shall be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the 
use of said facilities,  

 
 (2) That in connection with the construction of any improvement on said lands and the furnishing 

of services thereon, no discrimination shall be practiced in the selection of employees and 
contractors, by contractors in the selection and retention of first tier subcontractors, and by 
first tier subcontractors in the selection and retention of second tier subcontractors  

 
 (3) That such discrimination shall not be practiced against the public in their access to and use 

of the facilities and services constructed or operated on, over, or under the premises  
 
 (4) That the LESSEE shall use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed 

pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle 
“A,” Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the 
Department of Transportation.  Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as 
said Regulations may be amended. 

 
 The LESSEE understands that the Federal Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination against 

individuals with disability with regard to residential housing.  This act further prohibits discrimination 
based upon race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, marital status, familiar status or 
handicap. 

 
 That in the event of breach of any of the above non-discrimination covenants, the LESSOR shall 

have the right to terminate this Lease and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities 
thereon, and hold the same as if said Lease had never been made or issued. 

 
21. LESSEE agrees and is hereby informed that under the provisions of 35 ILCS 200/15.10 and 

200/15.55, property leased, subleased, or rented from the state of Illinois may be assessed to the 
LESSEE by the assessor of the county where the property is located, and the taxes thereon 
extended and billed to the LESSEE and collected in the same manner as though the property were 
not exempt. 

 
 
22. LESSEE is responsible for maintaining or renovating subject parcel or facility to conform to all 

applicable requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A).  All renovations required will 
be approved by the department prior to initiation of the project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 50



The parties have signed this Lease Agreement in two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be 
an original, and such counterpart shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
 
 

   
City of Galena, Lessee  __________________, Witness 

   
   

Date  Date 

   
   
  Address 

   
Attest:   
  City, State, Zip Code 

   
   

Director, Office of Program Development   
   
   
STATE OF ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION 
  

   
By:   
   
   

Secretary   
   
   

Date   
 

Page 44 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AZAVAR AUDIT (120348)
14111 1 Invoice REV AUDIT FEES 03/01/2018 38.31 01.11.549.00

Total AZAVAR AUDIT (120348): 38.31

BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788)
306017 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 02/24/2018 268.50 01.41.514.06

Total BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788): 268.50

C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630)
250 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/DEVIN 02/27/2018 8.00 01.21.471.15

Total C & C EMBROIDERY, INC. (630): 8.00

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
202361 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN 02/14/2018 288.45 01.41.863.09

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 288.45

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
110829 1 Invoice CHIPS 02/23/2018 449.39 15.41.614.01
110830 1 Invoice CHIPS 02/23/2018 658.24 15.41.614.01

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 1,107.63

DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789)
4864 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 02/20/2018 8,175.00 01.41.517.02

Total DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789): 8,175.00

ELECTRONIC SECURITY SOLUTIONS (120139)
ESS1824 1 Invoice PAPER/PAY & DISPLAY 02/22/2018 230.40 53.48.651.00

Total ELECTRONIC SECURITY SOLUTIONS (120139): 230.40

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
5497 1 Invoice FAUCET REPAIRS 02/08/2018 96.42 01.13.511.06
5497 2 Invoice FAUCET REPAIRS 02/08/2018 96.42 17.52.652.00
5508 1 Invoice WATER HEATER/REPAIR 02/13/2018 1,909.02 01.13.511.06
5537 1 Invoice DEPOT PLUMBING 02/20/2018 6,000.00 01.13.511.03
5542 1 Invoice FAUCET REPAIRS 02/21/2018 168.09 17.52.652.00
5542 2 Invoice FAUCET REPAIRS 02/21/2018 168.09 01.13.511.06

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 8,438.04

EMERGENCY REPORTING (119956)
2018-1549 1 Invoice ANNUAL REPORTING FE 02/26/2018 400.00 22.22.652.00

Total EMERGENCY REPORTING (119956): 400.00

FRANK, DAVE (153)
030818 1 Invoice RETIREMENT HEALTH B 03/08/2018 349.44 78.32.464.02

Page 45 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total FRANK, DAVE (153): 349.44

GALENA ARC (850)
030118 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  03/01/2018 100.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 100.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
69691 1 Invoice SQUAD 5 NEW BATTERY 02/16/2018 175.60 01.21.513.06
69728 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 MAINTENANCE 02/21/2018 35.51 01.21.513.06
69773 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 MAINTENANCE 02/27/2018 90.61 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 301.72

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00059687 1 Invoice HELP WANTED AD 02/02/2018 72.00 59.55.553.00
00059729 1 Invoice HELP WANTED AD 02/05/2018 72.00 59.55.553.00
00059759 1 Invoice HELP WANTED AD 02/08/2018 144.00 59.55.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 288.00

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
030118 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 38.83 01.13.511.06
030118 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 41.77 01.41.514.06
030118 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 86.63 01.41.613.12
030118 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 55.75 01.41.652.00
030118 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 5.92 01.41.653.00
030118 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 39.16 17.52.652.00
030118 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 46.79 20.25.515.00
030118 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 7.60 20.25.652.02
030118 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 40.49 22.22.611.00
030118 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 22.28 22.22.613.00
030118 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 4.49 22.22.652.00
030118 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 03/01/2018 8.99 58.54.654.01

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 398.70

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
90540 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 02/01/2018 115.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 115.00

GONZALEZ, MARIA LAGUNES (120508)
030718 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 03/07/2018 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total GONZALEZ, MARIA LAGUNES (120508): 200.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI010496 1 Invoice 2007 STERLING DUMP 02/05/2018 90.80 01.41.613.05
GWI010545 1 Invoice TRACTOR 02/12/2018 169.99 01.41.613.10
GWI010566 1 Invoice INT. DUMP 02/13/2018 255.74 01.41.613.06
GWI010568 1 Invoice TRACTOR 02/13/2018 46.61 01.41.613.10
GWI010646 1 Invoice 2007 STERLING DUMP 02/27/2018 1,557.45 01.41.613.05

Page 46 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 2,120.59

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
031218 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 03/12/2018 290.00 01.13.511.07
031218 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  03/12/2018 270.00 01.13.511.08
031218 3 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 03/12/2018 258.50 01.13.511.06

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 818.50

HYDE, MARY BETH (101)
022718 1 Invoice TRAINING/TRAVEL 02/27/2018 70.00 01.14.563.00

Total HYDE, MARY BETH (101): 70.00

IL DEPTARTMENT OF CMS (119146)
T1822824 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 02/13/2018 221.35 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPTARTMENT OF CMS (119146): 221.35

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1803051 1 Invoice PLUMBING SUPPLIES 03/05/2018 98.50 59.55.511.01

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 98.50

JDWI (235)
43059 1 Invoice SR. PUBLIC TRANSPORT 02/28/2018 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
030118 1 Invoice ELECTRIC/STREET LIGH 03/01/2018 4,887.99 15.41.572.00
030118 2 Invoice LIFT STATION 03/01/2018 115.65 52.43.850.09
030118 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 528.53 01.21.571.01
030118 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 128.16 12.10.571.01
030118 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 90.53 17.52.571.01
030118 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 499.63 20.25.576.01
030118 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 437.01 22.22.576.01
030118 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 745.73 58.54.571.01
030118 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS/ELECT 03/01/2018 36.10 01.41.571.01
030118 10 Invoice DEPOT/ELECTRIC 03/01/2018 80.07 01.13.511.03

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,549.40

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
030118 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 03/01/2018 200.12 01.21.563.00
030118 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 03/01/2018 100.00 22.22.538.00

GPD17-18 1 Invoice SPILLMAN ANNUAL COS 02/28/2018 1,751.00 01.21.684.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 2,051.12

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9305627976 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 02/27/2018 212.59 01.41.652.00

Page 47 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 212.59

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
29849 1 Invoice TIRES 02/27/2018 1,087.31 01.41.652.01

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 1,087.31

LEWIS, CHRISTOPHER A. (748)
022218 1 Invoice USACE MEETING 02/22/2018 35.30 01.45.563.00

Total LEWIS, CHRISTOPHER A. (748): 35.30

MENARDS (280)
59171 1 Invoice WINDOW SHADE 02/27/2018 20.92 01.13.511.06
59354 1 Invoice TOOLS 03/01/2018 9.97 01.41.653.00
59354 2 Invoice WINDOW CRANKS 03/01/2018 22.08 01.13.511.06

Total MENARDS (280): 52.97

MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143)
030118 1 Invoice TRAINING 03/01/2018 55.00 01.14.563.00

Total MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143): 55.00

MUNICIPAL EMERG. SERV. DEPOSITORY ACCT. (120507)
1204687 1 Invoice DRYWAL HOOK/PIKE PO 02/22/2018 493.40 22.22.840.00

Total MUNICIPAL EMERG. SERV. DEPOSITORY ACCT. (120507): 493.40

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
030118 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 03/01/2018 93.50 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 93.50

PIONEER FORD (120509)
113881 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 MAINTENANCE 02/27/2018 403.52 01.21.513.06

Total PIONEER FORD (120509): 403.52

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0461278 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 02/27/2018 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659)
0337823 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION MATERI 02/23/2018 613.62 01.21.652.03

Total SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659): 613.62

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
58404 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 03/01/2018 25.00 13.44.929.00

Page 48 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 25.00

TOP BLOCK AND BRICK (814)
3233377 1 Invoice SIDEWALK MATERIAL 03/01/2018 57.00 01.41.514.08

Total TOP BLOCK AND BRICK (814): 57.00

US CELLULAR (92)
030118 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 03/01/2018 51.64 01.41.552.00
030118 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 03/01/2018 46.03 01.11.552.00
030118 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 03/01/2018 86.44 01.21.552.01
030118 4 Invoice MORAN/CELL PHONE 03/01/2018 19.00 01.216.0
030118 5 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 03/01/2018 28.20 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 231.31

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
030118 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 03/01/2018 400.00 52.43.551.00
030118 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 03/01/2018 400.00 13.44.551.00

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 800.00

VAN METER INC. (141)
S010090567 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 02/22/2018 16.70 01.41.514.11

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 16.70

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
030118 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 03/01/2018 75.24 01.21.537.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 75.24

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D045740 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 02/19/2018 72.62 01.13.511.06

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 72.62

WEX BANK (119104)
030118 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 03/01/2018 2,984.13 01.41.655.00
030118 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 03/01/2018 325.96 17.52.655.03
030118 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 03/01/2018 1,146.02 01.21.655.00
030118 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 03/01/2018 78.45 01.46.655.00
030118 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 03/01/2018 160.07 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 4,694.63

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
030118 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 03/01/2018 110.00 01.41.511.01
030118 2 Invoice DEPOT RESTORATION 03/01/2018 14,546.00 01.13.511.03

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 14,656.00

Page 49 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 2/27/2018 - 3/31/2018 Mar 08, 2018  09:27AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0168766 1 Invoice SWEEPER 02/22/2018 137.00 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 137.00

Grand Totals: 58,309.36

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3126813
Vendor number hash - split: 4208469
Total number of invoices: 58
Total number of transactions: 94

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 58,309.36 58,309.36

Grand Totals: 58,309.36 58,309.36

Page 50 of 50


	00.00 Agenda 03.12.18
	00.0092 Minutes cc022618
	01.0093 Janitorial Contracts
	02.0095 Turner Hall Change Order
	03.0472 Sister City
	Sister City Support - Chris Allendorf
	2018 Member Application_Editable for SCI_0
	Invitation to Agen

	04.0096 Ehrler Request
	031218d
	DOC012

	05.0097 1002 Park Ave Rezoning
	06.0098 Cobblestone Addition Annexation
	Cobblestone Addition Annexation Ordinance
	Cobblestone Addition Petition for Annexation
	Cobblestone Addition Legal Descriptions
	Cobblestone Addition Annexation Plat

	07.0099 Cobblestone Addition Rezoning
	08.0100 Urban Deer Hunting
	031218c
	DOC012
	Deer Code

	09.0101 Construction Unit Costs
	10.0102 Gear Street Watermain
	11.0103 Kayak Storage Lease
	031218b
	IDOT Lease

	12.0105Warrants 03.12.18



